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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The Kendall Building, located at 307-309 W. State St. and 305 West State Street in Geneva, Illinois, has a rich history dating back to its construction in 1909. The building was designed for mixed-use, with one side intended for a grocery store and the other for dry goods. The contract for construction was awarded to Wilson Brothers, a well-known local contracting firm, and the building was completed in time for occupancy by November 1, 1909. The first occupants were Spiegler & Son, with E.G. Spiegler as the owner and John Wink as the manager. The building’s construction cost $6,590 and was a key part of the area's commercial development. The cement work for the project was carried out by William Cummings and his crew. The store officially opened under the name Wink & Spiegler on December 10, 1909.

By 1911, John and Harry Wink sold their interests in the business, and in 1912, Mrs. M.R. Griggs of Evanston purchased the Geneva motion picture theater, taking over the eastern half of the Kendall Building. She contracted Wilson Brothers to install a fireproof partition between the two store spaces and relocated the theater from the Landers Block. The theater was then renamed the Grand Theater, but it closed before 1915.

The building was subsequently converted into a restaurant by Mr. and Mrs. George Quady in 1915. In the western half of the building, McIntosh & Gaffney operated a market, and Fred Emde ran an electrical shop in a smaller building just to the north of the Kendall Block in 1915. By 1916, the space had been repurposed again, with Swan Berquist opening a bakery and delicatessen. In 1918, Carlson Grocery, operated by John Carlson, a longtime Geneva grocer, took over the former McIntosh & Gaffney store. The business was later sold to Carlson Bros. of Elgin, who reopened the store in 1919.

The Kendall Block changed hands in 1927 when Mrs. Grace Kendall, the widow of George Kendall, sold the building to a group of businesspeople. At the time of the sale, the building was occupied by C. A. & E. Transfer, Eneborg Bakery, and Walter Nelson’s Confectionery. Eneborg purchased the building and sold the transfer station to George Johnson, who owned the neighboring property to the east. Walter Nelson continued to operate the confectionery store.

George Kendall, the building's namesake, was born in Geneva and was the son of Jerome Kendall, a pioneer citizen who owned much of the property on the northwest corner of State and Third Streets. George initially ran a hardware business with Harry Brown in the 1890s before transitioning to insurance and real estate. He later worked as the advertising manager for Gillette Safety Razor Co. He passed away in 1918, having lived in Chicago at the time of his death.

In the 1960s, the east end of the Kendall Building housed Swanson’s Bakery, which received a "Project '63-Geneva" beautification award in 1964 for its contributions to the community's aesthetic development.

Throughout its history, the Kendall Building has been a significant part of Geneva’s commercial and social fabric, housing a variety of businesses, including a grocery, dry goods store, theater, bakery, and restaurant, and continuing to adapt to the needs of the community.
	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 Central North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Land Records; Geneva, Illinois: A History of Its Times and Places; Geneva, Illinois: 150 Reminders of 150 Years; Wilson Brothers - Contractors & Builders, 1905-1931 by Donald Wilson (2002)
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	ACCESSORY 3: 
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	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 307-309 West State Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: ca. 1912
	ARCHITECT: Unknown
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1909
	COMMON NAME: Unknown
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: Kendall Building, Spiegler & Son Grocery
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: One-Part Commercial Block
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Simple, Back Facing Rectangle
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 1
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Not Visible
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Brick
	FRONT PORCH: Commercial Entry 
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: N/A
	ENTRY DOORS: Commercial Entry 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Unknown
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	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Flat
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